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AQ 91 (Rev. 11/11) Criminal Complaint

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

District of Columbia

United States of America )
V. )
Derek Andrew Nelson, (05/28/1993) ) CaseNo.
Derek Jaccob Dodder, (08/21/1992) ;
)
)
Defendant(s)
CRIMINAL COMPLAINT
1, the complainant in this case, state that the following is true to the best of my knowledge and belief.
On or about the date(s) of January 6, 2021 in the county of
in the District of Columbia , the defendant(s) violated:
Code Section Offense Description

Derek Andrew Nelson DOB: 05/28/1993

18 U.S.C. § 1752(a)(1) - Entering and Remaining in a Restricted Building or Grounds,

18 US.C. § 1 752(a)(2) - Disorderly and Disruptive Conduct in a Restricted Building or Grounds,
40 U.S.C. § 5104(e)(2)(D) - Disorderly Conduct in a Capitol Building or Grounds,

40U S.C. § 5104(e)2)G) - Parading, Demonstrating, or Picketing in a Capito! Building.

Derek Jaccob Dodder DOB: 08/21/1992
18 U.S.C. § 1752(a)(1) - Entering and Remaining in a Restricted Building or Grounds,
18 U.S.C. § 1 752(a)(2) - Disorderly and Disruptive Conduct in a Restricted Building or Grounds,
40 U.S.C. § 5104(e)2)(D) - Disorderly Conduct in a Capitol Building or Grounds,
40 U.S.C. § 5104(e)(2)(G) - Parading, Demonstrating, or Picketing in a Capitol Building.
This criminal complaint is based on these facts:

See attached statement of facts.

A Continued on the attached sheet. .
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Complainant’s signature

Andrew Huckstadt, Special Agent

Printed name and title

Attested to by the applicant in accordance with the requirements of Fed. R. Crim. P. 4.1

by telephone.
Mu (Mﬁ_#ﬁ‘
Date: 10/02/2023
Judge'’s signature
City and state: Washington, D.C. Moxila A. Upadhyaya, U.S. Magistrate Judge

Printed name and title
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

Your affiant, Andrew M. Huckstadt, is a Special Agent assigned to the Champaign, I1linois
Resident Agency of the Springfield, Illinois FBI Field Office. I have been a Special Agent with
the FBI for over 15 years. During my career as a Special Agent, I have investigated a variety of
federal violations relating to child exploitation, violent crime, drug trafficking, public corruption,
civils rights, fraud, and terrorism. Currently, I am tasked with investigating criminal activity in
and around the Capitol grounds on January 6, 2021. As a Special Agent, [ am authorized by law
or by a Government agency to engage in or supervise the prevention, detection, investigation, or
prosecution of violations of federal criminal laws. The information contained in this statement of
facts is based in part on my own investigation, information provided by other law enforcement
officers, information provided by other witnesses, and my experience and background as a law
enforcement officer. The information contained in this statement of facts is not an exhaustive
account of everything I know about this case. Rather, it is only the facts I believe are necessary to
establish probable cause to issue the requested warrants.

The U.S. Capitol is secured 24 hours a day by U.S. Capitol Police. Restrictions around the
U.S. Capitol include permanent and temporary security barriers and posts manned by U.S. Capitol
Police. Only authorized people with appropriate identification were allowed access inside the U.S.
Capitol. On January 6, 2021, the exterior plaza of the U.S. Capitol was also closed to members of

the public.

On January 6, 2021, a joint session of the United States Congress convened at the United
States Capitol, which is located at First Street, SE, in Washington, D.C. During the joint session,
elected members of the United States House of Representatives and the United States Senate were
meeting in separate chambers of the United States Capitol to certify the vote count of the Electoral
College of the 2020 Presidential Election, which had taken place on November 3, 2020. The joint
session began at approximately 1:00 p.m. Shortly thereafter, by approximately 1:30 p.m., the
House and Senate adjourned to separate chambers to resolve a particular objection. Vice President
Mike Pence was present and presiding, first in the joint session, and then in the Senate chamber.

As the proceedings continued in both the House and the Senate, and with Vice President
Mike Pence present and presiding over the Senate, a large crowd gathered outside the U.S. Capitol.
As noted above, temporary and permanent barricades were in place around the exterior of the U.S.
Capitol building, and U.S. Capitol Police were present and attempting to keep the crowd away
from the Capitol building and the proceedings underway inside.

At such time, the certification proceedings were still underway and the exterior doors and
windows of the U.S. Capitol were locked or otherwise secured. Members of the U.S. Capitol Police
attempted to maintain order and keep the crowd from entering the Capitol; however, around 2:00
p.m., individuals in the crowd forced entry into the U.S. Capitol, including by breaking windows
and by assaulting members of the U.S. Capitol Police, as others in the crowd encouraged and
assisted those acts.

Shortly thereafter, at approximately 2:20 p.m. members of the United States House of
Representatives and United States Senate, including the President of the Senate, Vice President
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Mike Pence, were instructed to—and did—evacuate the chambers. Accordingly, the joint session
of the United States Congress was effectively suspended until shortly after 8:00 p.m. Vice
President Pence remained in the United States Capitol from the time he was evacuated from the
Senate Chamber until the sessions resumed.

During national news coverage of the aforementioned events, video footage which
appeared to be captured on mobile devices of persons present on the scene depicted evidence of
violations of local and federal law, including scores of individuals inside the U.S. Capitol building
without authority to be there.

Identification of Derek Jaccob DODDER

Based on information previously provided by Google, subsequent to legal process served
by the FBI, an electronic device logged into Google Account ID ending in 11750 was likely within
the U.S. Capitol on January 6, 2021, in violation of federal law.

According to records obtained through a search warrant served on Google, a mobile device
associated with djdodder****@gmail.com (hereinafter “the account Gmail address”) was present
at the U.S. Capitol on January 6, 2021. Google estimates device location using sources including
GPS data and information about nearby Wi-Fi access points and Bluetooth beacons. This location
data varies in its accuracy, depending on the source(s) of the data. As a result, Google assigns a
“maps display radius” for each location data point. Thus, where Google estimates that its location
data is accurate to within 10 meters, Google assigns a “maps display radius” of 10 meters to the
location data point. Finally, Google reports that its “maps display radius™ reflects the actual
location of the covered device approximately 68% of the time. In this case, Google location data
shows that a device associated with djdodder****@gmail.com was within the U.S. Capitol and
within the restricted area between approximately 2:13 p.m. and 3:20 p.m, including several data
points with a “maps display radius™ that is partially or entirely within the U.S. Capitol building.
Google records further showed that the account associated with the device was associated with
recovery e-mail address XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXx@gmail.com (hereinafter “the recovery Gmail
address”) and phone number 1-xxx-xxx-4373 (hereinafter “telephone number ending in 4373%),
and had a listed name of Red Tie Films RTF.

Subsequent open sources queries and queries of law enforcement databases revealed that
Derek Jaccob DODDER, DOB: xx/xx/1992, was affiliated with Red Tie Films RTF and the likely
subscriber of the account Gmail address. These queries further showed a current residence for
DODDER in Las Vegas, Nevada.

On July 1, 2021, DODDER voluntarily came to the Las Vegas, Nevada FBI Field Office
and consented to participate in an interview regarding an unrelated matter regarding an
investigation of other individual(s). During the interview, DODDER confirmed ownership of the
account Gmail address as his primary e-mail address, with a back-up e-mail address of the recovery
Gmail address. DODDER further stated he used an Android-style phone and he had never lost
possession of it. DODDER advised he had used telephone number ending in 4373 in the past,
though it was not his current telephone number at the time of the interview. Finally, DODDER
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In addition to the above photos of this individual from January 6, 2021, the FBI identified
photos of an individual of similar appearance from public social media posts who went by the
name Derek Nelson. Open source queries and queries of law enforcement databases corroborated
that Derek Andrew NELSON, DOB: xx/xx/1993, was likely the individual in these images. These
queries further showed a current residence for NELSON in Danville, Illinois, with previous
addresses in San Diego, California and Wauconda, Illinois. The FBI identified two public
Facebook profiles for NELSON which indicated he previously lived in California and was
originally from Wauconda, Illinois, giving further credibility to the FBI’s preliminary
identification of NELSON. In addition, NELSON’s publicly accessible Facebook profiles
indicated he served in the United States Marine Corps (USMC). The FBI obtained records from
the USMC which confirmed that NELSON was on active duty in the USMC from October 2011
to September 2015.

Further, a search of Illinois government records returned a photograph of NELSON that
appeared consistent with the physical appearance of the individual identified as NELSON in the
images above. NELSON’s U.S. passport photograph also appeared consistent with the physical
appearance of the individual identified as NELSON in the images above.

On February 8, 2022, I and another Agent attempted to interview NELSON at his residence
in Danville, Illinois regarding his involvement in the events of January 6, 2021 in Washington,
D.C. After several knocks on the front door of the residence with no response, I left a business
card containing my direct contact information in the mail slot of the front door. Later the same
day, I received a telephone call from a Chicago-based attorney who stated he represented
NELSON. I advised the attorney that I was seeking to interview NELSON regarding his activities
at the U.S. Capitol building on January 6, 2021. I was later informed, through counsel, that
NELSON declined to speak with the FBI about this matter.

In late April 2022, 1 interviewed an individual who interacted with NELSON when he
purchased his current residence in Danville, Illinois in June 2021 (“Witness-17"). I showed Witness-
| several images of the individual identified as NELSON through video footage review, including
Image 10 below. Witness-1 stated that while he did not recall interacting with NELSON outside
of the transaction, the individual depicted in the images wearing a distinctive dark-colored double-
breasted button coat appeared to be NELSON. Witness-1 was most confident about the below
image since it was a close-up view of the individual’s face.
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Aw R

Special Agent Andrew M. Huckstadt
Federal Bureau of Investigation

Attested to by the applicant in accordance with the requirements of Fed. R. Crim. P. 4.1 by

telephone, this 2" day of October 2023. m

THE HON. MOXILA A. UPADHYAYA
U.S. MAGISTRATE JUDGE
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